Oakland-Alameda County
Coliseum Authority

QAKLAND-ALAMEDA COUNTY COEESEUM AUTHORITY

Amended
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS REMOTE LOCATION
ORACLE ARENA PLAZA CLUB Scott Haggerty
7000 COLISEUM WAY Yosemite Valley Lodge
OAKLAND, CA 94621 9006 Yosemite Lodge Drive
Yosemite National Park, 95389
Friday, March 15, 2019
8:30 a.m. Chris Dobbins
Humboldt, CA Superior Court
825 5' Street
Eureka, CA 95501

1. CALLTQ ORDER
2. ROLLCALL

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

4. OPENFORUM

5. REPORTS
Sa. Executive Director’s Report

5b. General Manager's Report

6. NEW BUSINESS
6a. RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF SUPPLEMENT NO. 7 TO THE MASTER

AGREEMENT AND EXHIBITS TO THE MASTER AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE OAKLAND RAIDERS AND THE
OAKLAND ALAMEDA COUNTY COLISEUM AUTHORITY AND APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE
EXECUTION OF A SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT FOR A PARKING REVENUE DISPUTE BETWEEN THE OAKLAND
RAIDERS AND THE OAKLAND ALAMEDA COUNTY COLISEUM AUTHORITY

7. CLOSED SESSION
7a. Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54956.8:
CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS

Property: 7000 Coliseum Way Oakland, CA 94621

Agency Negotiator: Scott McKibben, Executive Director Oakland Alameda County Coliseum Authority
Negotiating Parties: Mark Davis, Principal Owner and Managing Partner, Ozakland Raiders

Under Negotiation: Price and terms of payment for license agreement extension

8. REPORT FROM COUNSEL ON CLOSED SESSION

9. ADIOURNMENT



Oakland-Alameda County

Coliseum Authority
Oakland-Alameda County Coliseum Authority
February 15, 2019
Meeting Minutes
CALL TO ORDER
Vice Chair Reld called the meeting to order at 8:40 a.m.
ROLL CALS .
Chair Miley arrived at 8:45 a.m.  ~ Vice Chair Reid
Commissioner De La Fuente Commissioner Hill
Commissioner Dobbins Commissioner Taylor

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

The Oakland Alameda County Collseum Autharity minutes for January 18, 2019 were submitted for appreval, Commissionar De
La Fuente moved to approve the minutes and Commissloner Taylor seconded the motion, The minutes were approved by
consensus,

OPEN FORUM
No speakers

REPORTS :
5a. Executive Director Scott McKibben updated the board on the stadium naming rights and hopes to complete the transactien

and bring to the board for approval by April. Scott reported on the meeting with City officials on the homeless project. Several
alternative site options were discussed and will be reviewed, Seott informed the Board on the ticket committee’s meeting and,
will provide a final policy and procedure for approval at next board meeting,

5b. The Generaj Manager’s report was reviewed by the commissionets in the absence of Chris Wright, General Manager

NEW BUSINESS
No new business

CLD_SED SESSION
The Board moved to closed session at 8:45 a.m.

REPORT FROM COUNSEL ON CLOSED SESSION
There was no reportable action from closed session

ADOURMNMENT
Meeting adjourned at 9:30 a.m,

m‘”’lu /é//u/» )

Katano Kasaine/ Secretary




i

Oakland-Alameda County

Coliseum Authority
Oakland-Alameda County Coliseum Authority
March 6, 2019
Special Meeting Minutes
CALL TO ORDER

Chair Miley callad the meeting to order at 9:04 a.m.

ROLL CALL

Chair Miley Vice Chair Reid arrived at 9:07a.m.
Commissioner De La Fuente Commissioner Hil arrived at 9:08 a.m.
Commissioner Dobbins Commissioner Taylor

Commissioner Haggerty

OFEN FORUM
No speakers

CLOSED SESSION
The Board moved to closed session at $:06 a.m.

REPORT FROM COUNSEL ON CLOSED SESSION
There was no reportable actian from closed session

ADQURNMENT
Meeting adjourned at 9:48 a.m.

(cros Yoo

Katano Kasaine/Secretary




Executive Director’s Report
OCACCA
March 15, 2019

Naming Rights-Stadium

Discussions and negotiations continue on the Naming Rights for the stadium. We
are currently engaged in discussing terms and a contract. if all goes well, we will
bring it to JPA Board for approval in April,

Indoor Football League

Discussions are ongoing with the Indoor Football League to put a team in Oakland
and play at Oracle Arena in spring 2020. League executives coming back in April
for additional discussions and site visit. We will contract them through AEG as an
arena event if they decide to move forward. They will make their final decision in
late summer,




AEG Management Oakland
General Manager's Board Report

March 15t 2019

Event Activity

216
2/18
217
219
2027
2128
311
3/2
3/3
318

La Arrolladora

Monster Jam

Monster Jam

Panic At The Disco!

Disney On Ice: Dare to Pream
Disney On lce: Dare to Dream
Disney On Ice: Dare to Dream
Disney On Ice: Dare to Dream
Disney On [ce: Dare to Dream

Muse

Upcoming Notable Events:

315
3/30
413
4/6
4110
4/12
4119
5116
6/3
73
8/10
8/14
910
9/16
11116

Justin Timberlake

Sonu Nigam and Neha Kakkar
Michale Buble

Arjit Singh

Weezer and the Pixies

The Millennium Tour — B2K
Snoop Dogg

Carrie Underwood

Hillseng United

Shawn Mendes: The Tour
Banda MS De Sergio Lizarraga
Jodo Siwa

Iron Maiden

Kiss

Mana



g ¥ "\z‘* f“f‘
. i

awmess’ L Vm

Oakland-Alameda County
Coliseum Authority

March 15, 2019
STAFF REPORT

6a. Reselution Approving and Authorizing the Execution of Supplement No. 7 to the Master
Agreement and Exhibits to the Master Agreement between the Oaldand Raiders and the
Oakland Alameda County Coliseum Authority and Approving and Authorizing the Execution
of Settlement Agreement for the Parking Dispute between the Qakland Raiders and the
Oakland Alameda County Coliseum Authority

Background. The Oakland Raiders (the “Raiders”) have been playing their home games at
the Oakland-Alameda County Coliseumn under Master Agreement and related Exhibits, including a
License Agreement (the “Master Agreement”) since the 1995 NFL football season. The parties
have entered several supplements. The Master Agreement, as amended, provides that the Raiders
are entitled to play football at the Oakland-Alameda County Coliscum through the end of the just
past (2018) NFL football season. The Raiders will be occupying a new stadium in Las Vegas,
Nevada. The new stadium is expected to be completed in July 2020, but there remains some
uncertainty on the completion date. The Raiders have requested that the Master Agreement be
extended through the end of the 2019-20 football season as this construction proceeds in addition to
an option year for the 2020-21 football season. The Raiders must exercise this option on or before
April of 2020 for the following season. Staff has worked with the Raiders to accommodate this
request, resulting in the attached Supplement No. 7 to the Master Agreement and Exhibits to the
Master Agreement (the “Supplement”). Included as Exhibit A to the Supplement is a Settlement
Agreement to resolve an on-going dispute between the Raiders and the Authority regarding the
amounts, if any, due from the Raiders for the Authority’s share of Football Parking Net Revenue,
The Raiders have agreed to pay the Authority $750,000 to settle this dispute.

Proposed Supplement. A summary of the proposed terms of the Supplement are described
below. A full form of the Supplement is attached.

e Term. The Suppiement extends the term through the end of the 2019-20 NFL footbali
season with the Raiders having an option year for 2020-21

¢ Rent Payments. Raiders shall pay to the Authority rent of $6,975,000.00 for
2019-20 season. If the Raiders exercise their option for 2020-21 season the rent will be
$9,975,000.00 per year. The Authority is guaranteed a profit of $2M for the 2019 season by
combination of revenues and expense caps, Additionally, the first $500K in expense
savings the Authority retains $250,000 for a net profit in that scenario of $2.250M and the
next $250,000 goes to public benefit fund. ‘



If the Raiders play one less pre-season game the rent is reduced by $500,000

Training Facility. Under the Master Agreement, upon termination of the Master Agreement,
the Raiders are required to convey the Training Facility property to the Authority in
satisfaction of the outstanding balance of the Operations Loan and Training Facility Loan.
The current Master Agreement, as amended, allows the Raiders to remain in the Training
Facility for 36 months following the termination of the Master Agreement, provided that the
Raiders pay fair market rent, not to exceed $525,000 per year, for 24 months and rent equal
to $1,050,000 for the final 12-months. The Supplement clarifies the dates by which the
Raiders may exercise the option to continue fo use the Training Facility, the general terms
for that use (triple net lease, continued obligation for trailing obligations}, and requires the
parties to negotiate within 6 months the terms of a formal written lease agreement.

Further Approvals. The Management Agreement, between the Authority, the City of Oakland
and the County of Alameda, requires that each of the City and the County approve the
Supplement.

Recommendation. Staff recommends that the Authority adopt the resolution approving and
authorizing the execution of Supplement No. 7 to the Master Agreement and Exhibits to the
Master Agreement, including the Settlement Agreement for the parking dispute, between the
Oakland Raiders and the Oakiand Alameda County Coliseum Authority and recommending to
the City and County the approval of the Supplement No. 7 and the Settlement Agreement,

Scott McKibben
Executive Director



SUPPLEMENT NO. 7 TO MASTER AGREEMENT
AND EXHIBITS TO THE MASTER AGREEMENT

RECITALS

1. The Oakland Alameda County Coliseum, Inc. (“OACC,” “Licensor” or “Coliseum™), the
Oakland Alameda County Coliseum Authority (the “Authority” or “JPA”), the City of Oakland, a
municipal corporation (the “City”), the County of Alameda (the “County”), the Qakland-Alameda
County Coliseum Financing Corporation (“Fimancing™) and The Oakland Raiders, a California
Limited Partnership (“Raiders LP”), and Raiders Football Club, LLC (“RFC” and together with
Raiders LP, the “Raiders” or “Licensee”) have previously entered into a Master Agreement, dated
August 7, 1995 (the “Master Agreement™).

2. The Master Agreement contained, as exhibits, the Definitional Annex and certain additional
agreements that certain of the Parties executed on August 7, 1995, including (i) the Oakland-
Alameda County Coliseum Stadium Operating License, between OACC and the Raiders (the
“Operating License”), (i) the Loan Agreement, between Financing and the Raiders (the “Loan
Agreement”), (iii) the Stadium Capital Improvement Design and Construction Coordination
Agreement, (iv) the Marketing Agreement, between the JPA and the Raiders (the “Marketing
Agreement”), and the associated Marketing Strategy, (v) the Stadium Improvement Plan, (vi) the
Visiting Team Share Agreement, among the City, the County, the Authority and the Raiders, and
(vii) Revenue Trust and Security Agreement, among OACC, the JPA, the Raiders and the Alameda
County Treasurer, as trustee (the “Revenue Trust Agreement”) (collectively, the Definitional
Annex and items (i) through (vii) are collectively referred to as the “Exhibits™).

3. On December 11, 2008, OACC dissolved. The Authority has and had previously assumed all
the rights and responsibilities of OACC, including, but not limited to OACC’s rights and
responsibilities under the Master Agreement and the Exhibits.

4. Financing is no longer an operating entity. The Authority confirms that it has and had
previously assumed all the rights and responsibilities of Financing, including, but not limited to
Financing’s rights and responsibilities under the Master Agreement and the Exhibits.

5. The meaning of the term “Parties” for purposes of this Supplement No. 7 to Master
Agreement and Exhibits to the Master Agreement (this “Supplement No. 7) shall include the
OACC, Authority, City, County, Financing, and Raiders to the extent such entities existed as of the
date of the respective agreements noted below.

6. On or about June 1, 1996, the Parties entered into Supplement No. 1 to Master Agreement
dated June 1, 1996 and Other Agreements Defined Therein (“Supplement No. 1”), amending and
modifying certain provisions of the Master Agreement and the Exhibits.

7. On or about March 28, 2006, the Parties entered into Supplement No. 2 to Master Agreement
and Exhibits to the Master Agreement(“Supplement No. 2”), amending and modifying certain
provisions of the Master Agreement and the Exhibits.

FPA “Clean™ March 10, 2019



8. On or about November 1, 2009, the Partics entered into Supplement No. 3 to Master
Agreement and Exhibits to the Master Agreement (“Supplement No. 3”), amending and modifying
certain provisions of the Master Agreement and the Exhibits.

9. On or about December 3, 2013, the Parties entered into Supplement No. 4 to Master
Agreement and Exhibits to the Master Agreement(“Supplement No. 4”), amending and modifying
certain provisions of the Master Agreement and the Exhibits.

10. On or about April 7, 2015, the Parties entered into Supplement No. 5 to Master Agreement
and Exhibits to the Master Agreement (“Supplement No. 5”), amending and modifying certain
provisions of the Master Agreement and the Exhibits.

11. Onorabout March __, 2016, the Parties entered into Supplement No. 6 to Master Agreement
and Exhibits to the Master Agreement (“Supplement No. 6”), amending and modifying certain
provisions of the Master Agreement and the Exhibits.

12. The Parties desire to enter into this Supplement No. 7 effective as of March , 2019,
representing the date by which all necessary Parties shall have approved and executed this
Supplement No. 7.

13. For purposes of this Supplement No. 7, the term, “Agreements,” shall mean collectively the
Master Agreement, Exhibits, Supplements Nos. 1 through 6 and this Supplement No. 7.

SUPPLEMENT

1. Master Agreement. Section 5.2(a) of the Master Agreement, as amended by previous
Supplements, is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced as follows:

(a) Football Parking Net Revenue.

Subject to the foregoing, the JPA shall be authorized to collect, and shall be responsible for
collecting, all Football Parking Net Revenue. The Parties agree that after the conclusion of
the 2005 Football Season, all Football Parking Net Revenues for subsequent seasons shall be
split equally between the Raiders and the JPA; provided that the parties acknowledge and
reconfirm that the Raiders’ fifty percent (50%) share of such future revenues shall continue
to secure the Raiders® payment obligations under the outstanding Loan Agreement and shall
continue to be applied as amounts due from the Raiders under such Loan Agreement. The
JPA shall be entitled to charge parking fees for Football Events of no more than $20 for the
2006 and 2007 Football Seasons, of no more than $25 for the 2008 and 2009 Foothall
Seasons, of no more than $30 for the 2010-2014 Football Seasons, and of no more than $35
for the 2014-2015, 2015-2016, 2016-2017, 2017-2018, 2018-2019, 2019-2020, and if
applicable, 2020-2021 Football Seasons; provided, however, that the parking charges shall
in no event exceed the average parking charges for similar professional football events in the
San Francisco Bay Area. The Parties acknowledge and agree that the maximum amounts
TPA shall be entitled to charge and/or collect for parking fees for Football Events include all
taxes, user fees, assessments, or any other costs or expenses of any kind, and JPA shall not

2



charge or collect any more than the amounts provided herein. The Raiders agree that to the
extent JPA collects and pays any such taxes, fees, assessments, costs or expenses from such
parking fees, Raiders shall make no claim for offset against amounts Raiders owes to JPA
pursuant to Section 18 of the Operating License, as amended. The Coliseum shall provide
parking services consistent with those of other premier NFL facilities.

Operating License. The Operating License is hereby amended and supplemented as follows:

a. Section 6.1 is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows:

6.1 Term. Subject to the terms and conditions of the Agreements, the term of this
License shall be for twenty-five (25) Football Seasons (which shall be consecutive
unless otherwise permitted by the Agreements), commencing with the First Football
Event in the OACC Stadium and such term shall end forty-five (45) days after the
last Football Event of Raiders” 2019-2020 Football Season in the OACC Stadium
under this License unless otherwise terminated by Raiders as provided in the
Agreements.

b. Section 6.1(a) is hereby amended to add the following additional subparagraph:

(d) Option to Extend. Raiders shall have the unilateral option to extend the Term for
a 26" football season (“2020 Option”) by providing Licensor written notice of the
exercise of such option on or before April 1, 2020, in which case the Term shall end
forty-five (45) days after the last Football Event of Raiders® 2020-2021 Football
Season. Raiders shall play all Football Events at the OACC Stadium during such
term except as otherwise provided in the Agreements and except that Raiders may
play one (1) preseason and one (1) regular season Football Event per season at a
location other than OACC Stadium, provided that such location is approved by the
NFL. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Raiders shall not have the right to exercise the
2020 Option if, as of the date the Raiders provide written notice of such exercise, or
as of the scheduled commencement date of the 2020 Option term, a monetary default
is continuing under the Agreements. If Raiders in good faith dispute any monetary
default asserted by Licensor, then the process for escrow, exercise of the option, and
resolution of such dispute set forth in Section 6.1(b), as added by Supplement No. 6,
shall apply.

¢. Section 7.4(a) is hereby added to the Operating License as follows:

(a) Raiders’ Additional Payments for 2019-2020 Football Season. In addition to any
other payments required by the Agreements, Raiders shall pay Licensor an
Additional Payment of Six Million Nine Hundred Seventy-Five Thousand Dollars
($6,975,000.00) for Raiders’ use of the QACC Stadium in the 2019-2020 Football
Season, paid on the following schedule: Four Million Dollars ($4,000,000.00) on or
before August 1, 2019; and Two Million Nine Hundred Seventy-Five Thousand
Dollars ($2,975,000.00) on or before December 1, 2019. In addition to playing one
(1) regular season Raiders home Football Event internationally, as scheduled by
NFL, Raiders may elect, in its sole discretion, to play one (1) 2019 preseason Raiders




home Football Event in a venue other than the OACC Stadium. In the event Raiders
plays such preseason home Football Event in a venue other than the OACC Stadium,
the Additional Payment due on December 1, 2019 shall be reduced by $500,000.00
to $2,475,000.00.

(b) Raiders’ Additional Payments for 2020-2021 Football Season. In addition to any
other payments required by the Agreements, if Raiders exercises its option to extend
the Term for the 2020-2021 Football Season, then Raiders shall pay Licensor an
Additional Payment of Nine Million Nine Hundred Seventy-Five Thousand Doliars
(89,975,000.00) for Raiders’ use of the OACC Stadium in the 2020-2021 Football
Season, paid on the following schedule: Seven Million Dollars ($7,000,000.00) on or
before Aungust 1, 2020; and Two Million Nine Hundred Seventy-Five Thousand
Dollars ($2,975,000.00) on or before December 1, 2020. In addition to playing one
(1) regular season Raiders home Football Event internationally, as scheduled by
NFL, Raiders may elect, in its sole discretion, to play one (1) 2020 preseason Raiders
home Football Event on a venue other than the OACC Stadium. In the event Raiders
plays such preseason home Football Event in a venue other than the OACC Stadium,
the Additional Payment due on December 1, 2020 shall be reduced by $500,000.00
to $2,475,000.00.

d. The following Section 7.6 is hereby added to the end of Section 7 of the Operating
License:

7.6 Contingent Additional Payments. The Parties agree that Raiders shall reimburse
Licensor for any shortfall should expenses exceed revenues and Licensor shall receive a minimum
profit from Football Events for the 2019 Football Season and the 2020 Football Season, should
the option for the 2020 Football Season be exercised by the Raiders, as calculated in accordance
with the following provisions of this Section 7.6:

a. Total Season Net Revenue. Within ninety (90) days after the final Football
Event is played at the OACC Coliseum for the 2019 Football Season, or the 2020
Football Season (if the 2020 Option is properly exercised), Licensor shall calculate
the total revenues generated during such Football Season which shall include the (i)
Additional Payment due from Raiders pursuant to Sections 7.4.a. and 7.4.b. of the
License Agreement (as modified by this Supplement No. 7), as applicable, and (ii)
revenues generated from every Football Event occurring during the applicable
Football Season (including, without limitation, Football Ticket Revenues, Club
Dues, Football Concession Net Revenues and Football Parking Net Revenues, except
that it does not include any amounts paid by Raiders pursuant to Section 6.b.(4)(A),
using the current revenue/expense calculation methodology being applied by the
Facility Operator to calculate such revenue (collectively, “T'otal Season Gross
Revenue”). All reasonable expenses paid by Licensor for Football Events with
respect to the applicable Football Season (but not expenses that have already been
included in calculating the revenues described above, shall be deducted from the
Total Season Gross Revenue to determine the “Total Season Net Revenue.” Within
minety (90) days after the end of each Football Season, Licensor shall cause the
Facility Operator to provide Raiders with a reasonably detailed statement setting

-



forth each component of the Total Season Net Revenue (the “Contingent Payment
Statement”). Licensor shall manage the OACC Coliseum, including with respect to
expenses incurred, during the Football Season in substantially the same manner as in
prior years; provided, however, that Licensor’s management of the facility may
differ from prior years as the result of events or requirements that are outside
Licensor’s control. Licensor shall cause Facility Operator to update the Raiders as to
expenses incwred and revenues received on at least a monthly basis during the
Football Season.

b. 2019 Football Season Contingent Payment. If the Total Season Net Revenue
for the 2019 Football Season is less than $2,000,000.00 (“2019 Contingent
Payment”), within thirty (30) days of its receipt of the Contingent Payment
Statement for such Football Season, the Raiders shall pay to Licensor the shortfall,
Le., the difference between the Total Scason Net Revenue and $2,000,000. Subject
to Section 7.6.d. below, any amount of Total Season Net Revenue in excess of the
2019 Contingent Payment shall be paid to Raiders within such thirty (30) day period.

c. 2020 Football Season Contingent Payment. If the Total Season Net Revenue
for the 2020 Football Season is less than $5,000,000.00 (“2020 Contingent
Payment”), within thirty (30) days of its receipt of the Contingent Payment
Statement for such Football Season, the Raiders shall pay to Licensor the shortfall,
L.e., the difference between the Total Season Net Revenue and $5,000,000. Any
amount of Total Season Net Revenue in excess of the 2020 Contingent Payment
shall be paid to Raiders within such thirty (30) day period. The Raiders
acknowledge and agree that, once the 2020 Option has been timely and appropriately
exercised by the Raiders, the Authority is entitled to the full amount of the 2020
Contingent Payment, without proration, regardless of whether the Raiders play less
than a full 2020 Football Season at the QACC Coliseum.

d. Sharing of Cost Savings. Notwithstanding the forgoing, if the Contingent
Payment Statement indicates that during the 2019 Football Season or the 2020
Football Season, as the case may be, the total expenses incurred by Licensor for
Football Events with respect to the applicable Football Season were less than such
expenses for the 2019 Football Season or less than the such expenses for the 2020
Football season, as the case may be, then Licensor shall be entitled to receive, in
excess of the 2019 Contingent Payment or the 2020 Contingent Payment, as the case
may be, an amount equal to fifty percent (50%) of the first $500,000 of any such cost
savings (“Cost Savings Licensor Share”). By way of example, if the Contingent
Payment Statement for the 2019 Football Season shows a cost savings during the
2019 Football Season of $500,000 as compared to the total expenses for the 2019
Football Season or the 2020 Football Season shows a cost savings during the 2020
Football Season of $500,000 as compared (o the total expenses for the 2020 Football
Season, then Licensor shall retain fifty percent (50%) of such cost savings or
$250,000, and the Raiders shall be entitled to the remainder, except as specified
below. However, if the Contingent Payment Statement for the 2019 Football Season
or the 2020 Football Season shows a cost savings during the 2019 Football Season or
the 2020 Football Season, as the case may be, of $500,001 or more, Licensor shall

5.



not be entitled to a retain more than $250,000. In addition to payment of the Cost
Savings Licensor Share, the Raiders shall pay the remainder of any such cost
savings, up to a maximum of $250,000, to the Public Benefit Fund.

e. Section 7.5 of the Operating License is amended to read as follows:

7.5 Additional Payments for Use of Permanent Training Facility and Training Site.
Commencing on March 1, 2020 if the Raiders do no exercise the 2020 Option or
March 1, 2021 if the Raiders do exercise the 2020 Option, the Raiders shall record in
the records of the Alameda County Clerk-Recorder a quitclaim deed transferring
ownership of the Permanent Training Facility and Training Site to the East Bay
Entities (or such other entity as the East Bay FEntities may designate), and
commencing on such date and no sooner, the Raiders shall have the option of
continuing to use the Permanent Training Facility and Training Site for up to thirty-
six (36) months as determined in Raiders’ discretion. Any effort or attempt by the
Raiders to exercise the option to continue o use the Permanent Training Facility and
Training Site prior to March 1, 2020 or March 1, 2021, if the 2020 Option is
exercised, is and shall be null and void. For the first two years in which the Raiders
continue to use the Permanent Training Facility and Training Sitc after the
recordation of the quitclaim deed, Raiders shall make an additional payment to
Licensor for continued use of the Permanent Training Facility and Training Site in an
amount equal to $525,000.00 per year for such first two years, payable monthly in
equal installments. For the third year in which the Raiders continue use the
Permanent Training Facility and Training Site after the recordation of the quitclaim
deed, Raiders shall pay Licensor an amount of One Million Fifty Thousand Dollars
($1,050,000.00), payable monthly in equal installments. The Raiders shall assume
tenancy of the Permanent Training Facility in its “AS IS” with “ALL FAULTS”
condition and shall occupy the Permanent Training Facility and Training Site as a
tenant under a triple net lease and shall be obligated to pay all real estate taxes,
building insurance, and maintenance on the property in addition to any normal fees,
including rent, utilities, common area dues, ete. Additionally, the Raiders shall have
a continuing obligation for any claims, liens, legal disputes or other obligation
caused during their tenancy regardless of whether they are raised before or after the
end of the Raiders’ tenancy (“Trailing Obligations™). The Parties shall enter into
good faith negotiations to draft and, within six (6) months of proper exercise of the
option right granted herein, enter into a formal written lease agreement containing
these general terms and other relevant provisions.

3. Parking Revenue. Concurrently with the execution of this Supplement No. 7, the Parties
shall execute and deliver the Settlement Agreement in the form attached hereto as Lixhibit A (the
“Parking Settlement Agreement™).

4.  Stadium Name Revenues. The Parties hereby agree to terminate the obligation of the JPA to
share Stadium Name Revenues with the Raiders. To reflect this change, the following deletions are
hereby made: (i) any reference in Section 6.3 of the Master Agreement, as such section has been
supplemented and amended by Section 4 of Supplement No. 1, to the “Stadiom Name Revenues”
is hereby deleted, (ii) the second sentence of Section 4 of Supplement No. 1 is hereby deleted in its

-6-



entirety, and (iii) the following language is added as the second Sentence of Section 4 of
Supplement No. 1 to replace both such deletions:

“Stadium Name Revenues shall not be shared by Raiders and JPA and instead shall, as
between the Raiders and the JPA, in all circumstances, belong solely to and be collected for
the benefit of and paid only to JPA.”

5. General Provisions.

a. Except as otherwise specifically supplemented, interpreted or modified by this
Supplement No. 7, all terms and provisions of the Agreements shall remain unmodified and in full
force and effect. This Supplement No. 7 and the other agreements and schedules referred to herein
shall constitute the entire agreement among the parties relating to the subject matter hereof and
thereof, and shall supersede any negotiations, understandings, or agreements, written or oral,
relating to the subject matter hereof and thereof, and shall not be changed or terminated orally. The
parties further agree that the Agreements (as modified by this Supplement No. 7) shall be fairly and
reasonably interpreted in the context of the time when the provision was drafted and applicable to
the Parties. To the extent there is any conflict between any provision in this Supplement No. 7 and
any provision in the Master Agreement, any Exhibit or Supplement No. 1, Supplement No. 2,
Supplement No. 3, Supplement No. 4, Supplement No. 5, or Supplement No. 6, the provisions in
this Supplement No. 7 shall control. In entering into this Supplement No. 7, no Party is relying on
any representation, statement of fact or opinion concerning any matter, except those expressly set
forth in this Supplement No. 7, if any.

b. The Parties agree, understand and acknowledge that no changes to the Agreements and
Exhibits set forth in this Supplement No. 7 shall affect or arc intended to affect, the rights of any of
the Parties with respect to the City’s Parking Tax Ordinance (Oakland Municipal Code Chapter
4.16) or any other tax

c. Nothing herein in any way releases, waives, or otherwise is intended to affect, in any
manner whatsoever, the claims being brought by the City in the civil case entitled City of Oakland
v. The Oakland Raiders, et al., Case No. 3:18-cv-07444-JCS (“City of Oakland Action™) nor any
such claims that either the Authority or the County may elect to bring in the future. Nothing herein
in any way releases, waives, or otherwise is intended to affect, in any manner whatsoever, any
claims that Raiders may elect to bring related to the Agreements (related to events prior to or after
the execution of this Supplement No. 7) or any claims or counterclaims that may be brought by the
Raiders against any of City, County, or Authority in the City of Oakland Action and the Raiders’
right to assert all such claims is expressly preserved. Any language herein which establishes the
rights and duties of the Parties hereto shall not create nor impair the ability of (a) the City to pursue,
to the fullest extent of the law, its claims in the City of Oakland Action, nor of the JPA or County in
any of their respective claims that may be similar to the City of Oakland Action, and, more
specifically, the Raiders and all other defendants in said civil cases, are barred from raising the
terms of either this Supplement No. 7 or the Parking Settlement Agreement in defending any of
those cases; or (b) the Raiders to assert claims related to the Agreements (related to events prior to
or after the execution of this Supplement No. 7) or assert any claims or counterclaims that may be
brought by the Raiders against any of City, County, or Authority in the City of Oakland Action and
the Raiders’ right to assert all such claims is expressly preserved and more specifically, the City,

-



County, Authority and all other parties in said civil cases, are barred from raising the terms of either
this Supplement No. 7 or the Parking Settlement Agreement in defending any claims.

d. This Supplement No. 7 may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of
which when executed and delivered shall be deemed an original and all of which taken together
shall be deemed one and the same instrument.

OAKILAND ALAMEDA COUNTY
COLISEUM AUTHORITY

By

Chair

Attest:
Secretary

CITY OF OAKLAND,

By

City Administrator

Approved as to form and legality:

City Attorney

COUNTY OF ALAMEDA

By
President, Board of Supervisors

Approved as to form:

County Counsel



THE OAKLAND RAIDERS, A CALIFORNIA
LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

By A.D. Football, Inc., its general partner

By:

President

RAIDERS FOOTBALL CLUB, LLC

By:

Chief Executive Officer



EXHIBIT A
PARKING SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT
(to be attached)

-10-



SETTILEMENT AGREEMENT

This settlement agreement (this “Settlement Agreement™) is entered into by and among
(1) the Oakland-Alameda County Coliseum Authority (the “Authority™), the City of Oakland (the
“City™), and the County of Alameda (the “County”); and (ii) The Oakland Raiders, a California
Limited Partnership (“Raiders LP”) and Raiders Football Club, LLC (“RFC”). The Authority,
the City, and the County are collectively referred to as the “Public Entities.” Raiders LP and
RFC are collectively referred to as “Raiders.” The Public Entities and Raiders are collectively
referred to as the “Parties.” This Settlement Agreement shall be effective as of the Effective
Date, as defined in Paragraph 2, below.

WHEREAS, the Parties previously entered into a Master Agreement dated August 7,
1995, which contained as exhibits certain additional agreements also executed by the Parties on
August 7, 1995; and

WHEREAS, after the execution of the Master Agreement, between June 1, 1996 and
March 2016, the Parties entered into six supplements to the Master Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Parties are concurrently entering into a seventh supplement to the
Master Agreement (“Supplement No. 7°); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Supplement No. 7, the Public Entities and the Raiders have
agreed to resolve a dispute regarding amounts, if any, that are due from the Raiders to the
Authority for the Authority’s specified share, under the terms of the Master Agreement and its
supplements, of Football Parking Net Revenue collected, charged, and/or generated by Raiders
during the period commencing with the 2007 NFL season and ending with the 2018 NFIL season
(the “Disputed Parking Funds”), which revenue the Public Entities contend is owed by Raiders to
the Authority and which revenue Raiders deny is owed; and

WHEREAS, Raiders have deposited into an escrow account held by [Bamking
Institution] (the “Escrow Account™) at least $466,110 (the “Escrow Funds”), representing a
portion of the total amount of $1,650,000 of Disputed Parking Funds claimed by the Authority to
be owed; and

WHEREAS, without any admission of liability or fault, the Parties desire to settle fully
and finally any claims by the Public Entities against Raiders concerning the Disputed Parking
Funds, and to avoid the costs, expenses, uncertainty, and inconvenience of litigation.

NOW, THEREFORE, intending to be legally bound and in consideration of the mutual
promises and covenants contained in this Settlement Agreement, and other good and valuable
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which the Parties hereby acknowledge, the Parties
agree as follows:

I. Definitions

For the purposes of this Settlement Agreement, the following terms shall have the following
meanings:

1321240.v1



1. “Affiliates” shall mean, with respect to a party, a party and all its respective past and
present, direct and indirect, parents, subsidiaries, and affiliates, including but not limited
to the predecessors, successors and assigns of each of the above; and each and all the
present and former principals, partners, officers, directors, supervisors, and employees of
each of the foregoing.

2 “Effective Date” shall mean the date this Settlement Agreement is executed by all Parties.
If the various Parties execute this Settlement Agreement on separate dates, the “Effective
Date” is the latest date any Party executes this Settlement Agreement.

3. “Released Claims” shall mean any and all claims, demands, actions, suits, causes of
action, whether class, individual, or otherwise in nature, under any federal, state or local
law of any jurisdiction, that any Party or their Affiliates ever had, now has, or hereafter
can, shall, or may ever have, that now exist or may exist in the future, on account of, or in
any way arising out of, any and all known and unknown, foreseen and unforeseen,
suspected or unsuspected, actual or contingent, liquidated or unliquidated claims, injuries,
damages, and the consequences thereof in any way arising out of or relating in any way
to the Disputed Parking Funds.

I1. Agreement
In consideration of, and as consideration for, the mutual agreements set forth herein:

4. The Raiders shall pay to the Authority a total of $750,000, representing consideration for
the Released Claims, in full settlement of any and all claims by the Public Entities for the
Disputed Parking Funds (the “Settlement Amount™). Raiders shall pay these settlement
amounts to the Authority as specified below:

a) Within two (2) business days following the execution date of Supplement No. 7 by the
Parties, the Raiders shall release all of the Escrow Funds to the Authority.

b) On or prior to August 1, 2019, the Raiders shall pay to the Authority the remaining
amount of the Settlement Amount, calculated as the result of the Settlement Amount
(plus any escrow, wire or other fees charged to the Parties) less the Escrow Funds
released pursuant to subparagraph (a) above.

c) The Raiders shall remit all amounts due hereunder to the Authority by wire as follows:

Bank: Union Bank of California, LA
ABA #122000496

SWIFT #

Account # 7020010325

Beneficiary: Account of County of Alameda FBO: Oakland Coliseum
JPA, Attn: Laura Briseno

5. In the event the Parties do not execute Supplement No. 7: (a) the Raiders shall not have
any payment obligation regarding Disputed Parking Funds under paragraph 4, above; (b)

2
1321240.v1



L.

10.

the releases set forth in paragraphs 6 through 8, below, shall have no force or effect; and
(c) Raiders shall continue to maintain the Escrow Funds in the Escrow Account until the
Parties cither finally settle or finally legally adjudicate their respective rights regarding
the Disputed Parking Funds.

Upon execution of Supplement No. 7 by the Parties, all Public Entities, on behalf of each
of them and all their Affiliates, shall hereby voluntarily and irrevocably release Raiders
and Raiders’ Affiliates from all Released Claims, and shall further covenant not to sue
Raiders or Raiders Affiliates with respect to the subject matter of any Released Claims.

Upon execution of Supplement No. 7 by the Parties, Raiders, on behalf of Raiders LP,
RIC, and all their Affiliates, shall hereby voluntary and irrevocably release all Public
Entities from all Released Claims, and shall further covenant not to sue Public Entity or
Public Entity Affiliates with respect to the subject matter of any Released Claims.

It is the clear and unequivocal intention of the Parties, and each of them, that this
Settlement Agreement shall be effective as a full and final accord and satisfaction,
release, and discharge of each and every Released Claim. In furtherance of this intention,
each party hereto acknowledges that it understands section 1542 of the Civil Code of the
State of California, which provides as follows:

A GENERAL RELEASE DOES NOT EXTEND TO CLAIMS
THAT THE CREDITOR OR RELEASING PARTY DOES
NOT KNOW OR SUSPECT TO EXIST IN HIS OR HER
FAVOR AT THE TIME OF EXECUTING THE RELEASE
AND THAT, IF KNOWN BY HIM OR HER, WOULD HAVE
MATERIALLY AFFECTED HIS OR HER SETTLEMENT
WITH THE DEBTOR OR RELEASED PARTY.

Upon execution of Supplement No. 7 by the Parties, each Party shall waive and
relinquish any and all rights and benefits which it has or may have under section 1542 of
the Civil Code of the State of California to the full extent that it may lawfully waive all
such rights and benefits pertaining to the subject matter of the releases contained in this
Settlement Agreement.

Representations and Warranties

Each Party represents, warrants, and covenants that it has full authority to settle,
compromise, and release the Released Claims described herein on behalf of itself and all
Affiliates and to execute this Settlement Agreement. The Parties each represent, warrant,
and covenant that its authorized representatives are of legal age and legal competence to
execute this Settlement Agreement, that its authorized representatives have full authority
to execute this Settlement Agreement and bind its respective principals to its terms, and
that its authorized representatives do so of their own free will and accord without reliance
on any representation of any kind or character not expressly set forth herein,

The Parties to this Settlement Agreement and their counsel have participated jointly in
the negotiation and drafting of this Settlement Agreement, and for all purposes this

3

13212401



il

12.

Iv.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Settlement Agreement shall be deemed to have been drafted jointly by the Parties and
their counsel.

The Parties execute this Settlement Agreement freely and voluntarily and without acting
under any duress or in reliance upon any threat made by or on behalf of the other Party.
Each Party has consulted with or has had an opportunity to consult with counsel of its
own choice about the legal effect of entering into this Settlement Agreement.

This Settlement Agreement results from the settlement of disputed claims between the
Parties and is not an admission of lability or responsibility on the part of any of the
Parties who are signatories hereto. Raiders’ release or payment to the Authority of the
Disputed Parking Funds or any amounts under this Settlement Agreement shall not be,
and shall not be construed as, an admission of liability or fault by Raiders.

Governing Law and Venue

This Settlement Agreement shall be interpreted, enforced, construed and controlled by
the faws of the State of California, without regard to its conflicts of law principles. The
exclustve jurisdictions for any court action or proceeding arising out of or related to this
Settlement Agreement shall be the United States District Court for the Northern District
of California or the California Superior Court for the County of Alameda, and each Party
hereby consents to jurisdiction and venue in those courts. The prevailing Party in any
action or proceeding alleging breach of this Settlement Agreement shall be entitled to
recover from the Party who breaches the Settlement Agreement, not only the amount of
any judgment or order, but also such other costs and expenses as may be reasonably
incurred by said Party, including court costs and reasonable attorneys’ fees and all other
reasonable cost and expenses, whether taxed or otherwise, incurred in connection with
said action or proceeding. Such additional recovery, provided for in this paragraph, will
be contingent upon a finding of the court that the recovering Party was the prevailing
Party in the action and that the breach giving rise to the recovery was a material breach of
this Settlement Agreement.

Miscellaneous

This Settlement Agreement constitutes the complete, final and exclusive embodiment of
the entire agreement between the Parties regarding the subject matter hereof. The Parties
enter into this Settlement Agreement without reliance on any promises or representations,
written or oral, other than those expressly contained herein, and this Settlement
Agreement supersedes any other promises, warranties or representations, This Settlement
Agreement cannot be modified or amended except by a subsequent written agreement,
signed by the Parties to be bound by the modification or amendment, and which
specifically mentions this Settlement Agreement.

The invalidity or unenforceability of any provision of this Settlement Agreement shall not
affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision.

This Settlement Agreement may be executed by the Parties in counterparts.

1321240.v1



17. This Settlement Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Parties
and their heirs, successors, and assigns.

18. Any notice to be provided pursuant to this Settlement Agreement shall be provided as
follows:

Notice to Public Entities:

Daniel Purcell

Keker, Van Nest & Peters LLP
633 Battery Street

San Francisco, CA 94111
dpurcell@keker.com

with a copy to

Scott McKibben, Executive Director
Oakland-Alameda County Coliseum Authority
7000 Coliseum Way

Oakland, CA 94621

Smckibbenl @gmail.com

Notice to Raiders:

1220 Harbor Bay Parkway
Alameda, CA 94502
Attention: Dan Ventrelle

with a copy to
Arnold & Porter Kaye Scholer LLP
Three Embarcadero Center, 10" Floor

San Francisco, CA 94111
Attention: Kenneth G. Hausman, Esq.

1321240.v1



IN WITNESS WHEREOLF, the Parties have approved and executed this Settlement
Agreement effective as of the Eftective Date, set forth above,

OAKLAND ALAMEDA COUNTY
COLISEUM AUTHORITY

By

Chair

Attest:

Secretary

CITY OF OAKLAND

By

City Administrator

Approved as to form and legality:

City Attorney

COUNTY OF ALAMEDA

By

President, Board of Supervisors

Approved as to form:

County Counsel

1321240.v1



1321240.v1

THE OAKLAND RAIDERS, A CALIFORNIA
LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

By A.D. Football, Inc., its general partner

By:

President

RAIDERS FOOTBALL CLUB, LLC

By:
Chief Executive Officer



OAKLAND-ALAMEDA COUNTY COLISEUM AUTHORITY
RESOLUTION NO. 2019-

RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF SUPPLEMENT NO. 7 TO THE
MASTER AGREEMENT AND EXHIBITS TO THE MASTER AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE OAKLAND
RAIDERS AND THE OAKLAND-ALAMEDA COUNTY COLISEUM AUTHORITY AND APPROVING AND
AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF THE SETTLEMENT AGREEMIENT FOR THE PARKING DISPUTE
BETWEEN THE OAKLAND RAIDERS AND THE OAKLAND-ALAMEDA COUNTY COLISEUM
AUTHORITY

WHEREAS, pursuant to the staff report presented to this meeting, staff has
recommended to the governing board of the Oakland-Alameda County Coliseum Authority
(“Authority”) that the Authority approve and accept Supplement No. 7 to the Master
Agreement and Exhibits to the Master Agreement between The Oakland Raiders and the
Authority; and

WHEREAS, staff also has recommended to the governing board of the Authority that the
Authority approve and accept the Settlement Agreement, attached as Exhibit A to Supplement
No. 7, between The Oakland Raiders and the Authority to settle and resolve an on-going
dispute between the parties regarding football parking revenues; and

WHEREAS, a form of Supplement No. 7 with Exhibit A, the Settlement Agreement, has
been presented to this meeting; and

WHEREAS, the Authority finds it advisable and now desires to approve the form of
Supplement No. 7 and the Settlement Agreement and to authorize the execution of said
Agreements; and

NOW THEREFORE BE IT

RESOLVED: that the Authority Board of Commissioners hereby approves and authorizes
the execution of Supplement No. 7 to the Master Agreement and Exhibits to the Master
Agreement between The Oakland Raiders and the Authority; and be it

FURTHER RESOLVED: that the Authority Board of Commissioners hereby approves and
authorizes the execution of the Settlement Agreement, which is attached as Exhibit A to
Suppltement No. 7, between The Oakland Raiders and the Authority to resolve the parking
revenue dispute; and be it

FURTHER RESOLVED: that the Authority Board of Commissioners hereby recommends
to the City Council of the City of Oakland and the Board of Supervisors of the County of
Alameda the approval of Supplement No. 7 and the Settlement Agreement.



PASSED AND ADOPTED by the governing hoard of the QOakland-Alameda County Coliseum
Authority, this 15" day of March, 2019,by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

CHAIR, OAKLAND-ALAMEDA COUNTY
COLISEUM AUTHORTY

ATTEST:

SECRETARY, OAKLAND-ALAMEDA
COUNTY COLISEUM AUTHORITY



